ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 18, 2011
1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Hollis French, Chair

Senator Bill Welechowski, Vice Chair
Senat or Joe Paskvan

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senat or John Coghi | |

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 86

"An Act relating to the protection of property of persons under
disability and mnors; relating to the crine of violating a
protective order concerning certain vul nerable persons; relating
to aggravating factors at sentencing for offenses concerning a
victim 65 years or older; relating to the protection of
vul nerabl e adults; anmending Rule 12(h), Al aska Rules of Crimnal
Procedure; anending Rule 45(a), Alaska Rules of Crimnal
Procedure; anending Rule 65, Alaska Rules of Civil Procedure;
anending Rule 17, Alaska Rules of Probate Procedure; anending
Rule 9, Alaska Rules of Admnistration; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 2

Proposing anmendnments to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to the presiding officer pro tenpore.

- MOVED CSSCR 2(STA) OUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO. 30
"An Act providing for the release of certain property in the
custody of a law enforcenment agency to the owner under certain
conditions.™

- HEARD & HELD

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -1- March 18, 2011



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 86
SHORT TITLE: PROTECTI ON OF VULNERABLE ADULTS/ M NORS
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

02/ 09/ 11 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 09/ 11 (S) JUD, FIN

02/ 21/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
02/ 21/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

02/ 21/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 18/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

BILL: SB 30
SHORT TITLE: RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY
SPONSOR(s): DYSON

01/19/11 (S PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/ 11

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/19/11 (S STA, JUD

02/ 03/ 11 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 03/ 11 (S Heard & Held

02/ 03/ 11 (S M NUTE( STA)

02/ 17/ 11 (S STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 17/ 11 (S) Moved CSSB 30(STA) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 17/ 11 (S M NUTE( STA)

02/21/11 (S STA RPT CS 4DP 1NR NEW TI TLE

02/ 21/ 11 (S DP: KOOKESH, PASKVAN, MEYER, G ESSEL
02/21/11 (S NR: W ELECHOWSKI

02/ 28/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
02/ 28/ 11 (S Heard & Held

02/ 28/ 11 (S M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 18/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)
BILL: SCR 2

SHORT TITLE: UNI FORM RULES: PRESI DI NG OFFI CER PRO TEM
SPONSOR(s): DAVI S

01/19/11 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) STA, JUD, FIN

02/ 10/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 10/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

02/ 10/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 15/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 15/ 11 (S Moved CSSCR 2(STA) Qut of Commttee
02/ 15/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 16/ 11 (S STA RPT CS 1DP 1DNP 3NR SAME TI TLE

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 2- March 18, 2011



02/ 16/ 11 (S) DP:  PASKVAN

02/ 16/ 11 (S) DNP: G ESSEL

02/ 16/ 11 (S) NR. W ELECHOWBKI , MEYER, KOOKESH
03/ 11/ 11 (S) JUD AT 1:30 PM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
03/ 11/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 11/ 11 (S) M NUTE( JUD)

W TNESS REG STER

SCOTT STERLI NG Supervising Attorney

El der Fraud and Assi stance

O fice of Public Advocacy (OPA)

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 86

JOANNE G BBENS, Deputy Director

Di vision of Senior and Disabilities Services (DSDS)
Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 86.

DOUG WOOLI VER

Adm ni strative Attorney

Al aska Court System

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 86.

KELLY HENRI KSEN, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Human Services Section

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regardi ng SB 86.

MARI E DARLI N

Anmeri can Associ ation of Retired Persons (AARP)
Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 86.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Sponsor of SCR 2.

CHUCK KOPP, Staff to Senator Dyson
Al aska State Legislature

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 3- March 18, 2011



Juneau, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 30 for Senator Fred Dyson, the
Sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:33: 56 PM

CHAIR HOLLIS FRENCH <called the Senate Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:33 p.m Senators Coghill,
Paskvan, MGuire, and French were present at the call to order

SB 86- PROTECTI ON OF VULNERABLE ADULTS/ M NORS

1: 34: 36 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 86 and stated
that this bill hearing would be a work session to reach a

conprom se in order to prepare a commttee substitute (CS)

1:35: 08 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSEKI j oi ned the conmm tt ee.

1: 36: 53 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said he'd like to start with the notice provisions.
In the wunderlying statute, Title 13, dealing with ex parte
orders, there are notice provisions that are in conflict wth
the proposed bill. Ex parte orders normally occur without giving
notice to the other side. This is wunusual because only one
person is in the court room As it stands now it says, "On a
petition for appointnment of a conservator or other protective
order, the person to be protected ..! nust be served personally
by certified mail or by any other nethod of notice of hearing.
That is in AS 13.26.185. The bill needs to clarify that there
aren't two sets of notice requirenents.

The other concern is on page 4, line 22. Scott Sterling had the
same concern. Because it's a vulnerable adult, that person
probably wouldn't be the only other person in the court. The
bill requires notice to the respondent, and there should also be
sonme notice to the vulnerable adult as well, because you don't
know the | evel of vulnerability.

1:40: 51 PM

SCOIT  STERLI NG Super vi si ng At t or ney, El der Fraud and
Assistance, Ofice of Public Advocacy (OPA), Departnent of
Adm ni stration (DOA), said he agrees there should be consistency
bet ween new | anguage and the existing statute. He said we can
carve out an exception for the protective orders that are

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -4- March 18, 2011



aut horized by the new section and he would be happy to work on
| anguage to address that issue.

MR. STERLING added that on page 4, line 22, the concern is
ensuring that the vulnerable adult w Il receive notice, unless
it's certified to the court that it would increase the harm to
the vulnerable adult. This is to prevent an unscrupulous third
party from using this renedy, and also to ensure that the
vul nerable adult knows that relief is being sought on their
behal f. In nost cases, the vulnerable adult probably will be the
petitioner, and that issue need not be addressed. This is for
the case when an incapacitated person is being victimzed and a
third party tries to halt the harm they can cone in and say
they are speaking on the victims behalf but the victim would
still receive notice.

CHAI R FRENCH said that makes sense. He posed a hypothetical wth
a vul nerabl e parent, an evil brother, and a good-hearted sister.

MR. STERLING said the first question is if the vulnerable adult
has capacity. If they do, they could ask for relief. If the
vul nerabl e adult |acks capacity and is being victimzed the good
hearted sister could go to court and speak on the person's
behalf for relief, and exenpt notice to the vulnerable adult
because the perpetrator could intercept it. Unless there is a
specific reason, the vulnerable adult would receive notice. It
is better to freeze the situation so appropriate agencies can
make inquiries without further dissipation of assets.

1:46:12 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked if the House had devel oped specific | anguage.

MR. STERLI NG answered yes; it is nowin the formof a CS in the
ot her body.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if he'd seen the letter from Mark Regan of
the Disability Law Center. He summarized it as follows: M.
Regan reconmends an opportunity for the person and respondent to
be protected on three days' notice and adds a provision for
i mredi at e reappoi nt mrent of counsel.

MR. STERLING said he'd like to look at that letter but he sees
no reason why a person couldn't say they need nodification. The
vul nerable adult is entitled to counsel and this ex parte
provision would fit better with the situation where counsel is
appointed. It would be different from the donestic violence
ar ena.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 5- March 18, 2011



1:49:17 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said you could see where the situation could
devol ve quickly, and there could be substantial assets at risk.

MR. STERLING answered we're often trying to give |egal
protections long after the assets are gone.

CHAIR FRENCH pointed out the definitions for wundue influence
fromother states. He said it's in the packet with the nmeno from
M. Sterling.

1:51:.21 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN asked how many people would take advantage of
this ex parte process.

MR. STERLING replied they don't have i mediate relief nechanisns
in the law. The best they can do is file for an energency
conservatorship. Probably half of the cases that cone to his
of fice have entirely dissipated assets or largely so.

SENATOR PASKVAN said he's wondering if this will result in so
many cases statewide that it wll unduly inpact the court
system

MR. STERLI NG answered it may rise to that |evel over tine.
CHAI R FRENCH noted that Ms. G bbens was on |ine.

1:54: 29 PM

JOANNE @G BBENS, Deputy Director, Division of Senior and
Disabilities Services (DSDS), Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS) stated that for FY10 DSDS received 541 calls
regardi ng financial exploitation. She added that she didn't have
data about how many of those calls resulted in verified cases.

SENATOR PASKVAN asked if that phone nunber was accessible
st at ew de.

M5. G BBONS answer ed yes.

1:55:59 PM

DOUG WOOLI VER, Administrative Attorney, Alaska Court System
stated that |ast year the court record shows there were 281
conbi ned conservatorships and guardianships filed, and 61
conservatorships of an adult were filed. He added that they
woul d expect to see an increase in those over tine both because

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 6- March 18, 2011



of the aging population and because this bill <creates an
opportunity that doesn't currently exist.

CHAIR FRENCH noted that Alaska has the fastest grow ng senior
popul ation in the nation.

1:57:18 PM

CHAIR FRENCH said point 2 of M. Sterling's nmenp suggests
replacing the current subsection (f) wth other |anguage. He
asked if he neant to delete the contents of lines 17-22.

MR. STERLING said yes. He added that this was corrected in the
CS before the House comm ttee.

1:58:33 PM

SENATOR MCGQUIRE reminded the conmttee that this isn't just
about seniors. Her bDbrother for exanple, has traumatic brain
injury and issues of individual |iberty cone into play once the
adult reaches the age of mmjority. This 1is an inportant
provi si on when you consider seniors and the nunber of victins of
traumatic brain injury comng out of Iraq. Alaska is good about
recogni zing individual |iberties, she said.

2:00: 18 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN referenced point 2 of M. Sterling's neno and
asked what it intends to speak to.

VR. STERLING said the discussion on the conpanion bil
articulated the same concern of ensuring that due process notice
acconpanies the ex parte order process. The renmedy was to nail
fax, or deliver a copy of the order to the third party's bank,
for exanple. The idea of recording with the state recorder
wasn't viable because of existing provisions in Title 40. The
drafters suggested saying the order would be effective upon
registering with the Departnent of Public Safety (DPS). That
ties in with the simlar registry provision for donestic
violence and stalking orders. This address the fact that nost
financial institutions are national conpanies and they have the
ability to research the registry that's contenplated. On the
famly abuse level, the idea is that if the protective order is
served on the alleged perpetrator at their residence or work
that woul d satisfy due process for receiving notice.

2:04: 12 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said you're referencing the perpetrator, not the
financial institution.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -7- March 18, 2011



MR. STERLING said it's the third party provision but the order
would need to be served on that branch and the perpetrator so
they are held |iable for obeying the order.

CHAIR FRENCH said you'll need to enlist the aid of third parties
fromtinme to tine in order to be effective.

MR. STERLING agreed: for exanple, a famly nenber holds a
nomnally valid power of attorney and a third party, such as a
bank, is obliged to honor that. W don't want to put that third
party in a position of dishonoring it without this notice. They
woul d then be on the alert that soneone is abusing the power of
attorney. Do not honor that, under the protection of this order,
until the situation can be clarified.

2:08: 00 PM
SENATOR PASKVAN sai d the banks woul d need to check the registry.

MR. STERLING replied they would if they didn't receive the

notice by fax or mail. Wth the property conveying statutes,
financial institutions do this checking regularly for UCC
filings.

2:09: 28 PM

CHAI R FRENCH asked why he suggested a change in the definition
of "fiduciary duty."

MR. STERLING said this was addressed in the House bill. He cited
Paskvan v. Messich; it would be nbst consistent with existing
I aw.

CHAIR FRENCH asked if "third party" could be changed to "a
person."

MR. STERLI NG said would be fine.

2:12: 02 PM
CHAI R FRENCH asked about the mandatory reporting on page 9, Sec.
16.47.24.010. There's a "shall" and the issue is if there's a

penalty for not naking a report.

2:13:19 PM
KELLY HENRI KSEN, Assistant Attorney General, Gvil Division,
Human Services Section, Departnment of Law (DOL), said they
didn't contenplate a penalty. It was intended to be an
i ncentive.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 8- March 18, 2011



CHAI R FRENCH noted there is already a penalty in subsection (c).

M5. HENRIKSON said she found simlar Jlanguage in the OCS
mandatory reporting |language, in AS 47.17.020. It says the peace
officer "shall immediately take action to protect the child and
shall at the earliest opportunity notify the nearest office of
t he Departnent."”

CHAIR FRENCH said the peace officer falls under subsection (a).
The issue is there's a "shall" and if you don't report a serious
crime resulting in injury, you are crimnally Iiable.

M5. HENRIKSON said we wouldn't treat a police officer any
differently.

CHAIR FRENCH said it's not the police officer; it's the
reporting person on line 4 who mght be at risk. Those are the
sane mandatory reports.

2:16:31 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said page 9, line 11-16, says "if the decision
under this subsection is to take immediate action it may not
bring an action unless there is gross negligence or intentiona
m sconduct.” He asked if there is a reason for saying imediate
action and why wouldn't it include the decision not to take
i medi at e acti on.

MS5. HENRI KSON said she reads it the sane way. It applies to both
t he VPSO and police officer

SENATOR PASKVAN cited the sentence above and said it's odd.
M5. HENRI KSON agreed it should be nmade consi stent.

2:19: 07 PM
CHAIR FRENCH said his list of concerns had been addressed and
noted that DOL had no further questions.

2:19:49 PM

MARI E DARLIN, Anrerican Association of Retired Persons (AARP),
stated support for SB 86. She said as the popul ation ages nore
of these problens will conme to the fore. She agreed with Senat or
McGQuire that this would apply to nore than just seniors.

CHAI R FRENCH cl osed public testinmony and held SB 86 in conmmttee
awai ting a CS.

SENATE JUD COW TTEE - 9- March 18, 2011



SCR_ 2- UNI FORM RULES: PRESI DI NG OFFI CER PRO TEM

2:21.: 47 PM

CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SCR 2. Finding no
one who wanted to testify, he closed public testinony and asked
t he sponsor if she had anything to add.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S, sponsor of SCR 2, opined that there wasn't
any interest in giving testinony because this is an internal
matter. This officer has a tenporary function but nationw de
there are 34 Pro Tens in the House and 42 in the Senate. Mbst
are men. This allows the speaker or president to use the
position in any way he or she wants. This would be beneficial.

CHAI R FRENCH solicited a notion.

2:24:51 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to report SCR 2 from conmmittee with
i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and attached fiscal not e(s).

Responding to the chair, he confirnmed that the notion was to
nove the state affairs conmttee substitute.

2:25: 08 PM
SENATOR COGHILL objected to coment that he personally doesn't
see a need at this point. He renoved his objection.

CHAI R FRENCH announced that wthout further objection, CSSCR
2(STA) noved fromthe Senate Judiciary Standing Commttee.

2:26: 05 PM
At ease from2:26 p.m to 2:28 p. m

SB  30- RETURN OF SEI ZED PROPERTY

2:28: 19 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced the consideration of SB 30 and asked for
a notion to adopt the proposed commttee substitute (CS).

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI noved to adopt CS for SB 30, |abeled 27-
LS0344\ D, as the working docunent.

CHAI R FRENCH obj ect ed for di scussion purposes.
2:28:56 PM
CHUCK KOPP, staff to Senator Dyson, said the CS reflects the

suggestions the conmttee nade during the |ast hearing. First,
the phrase "crinme victin is used throughout the bill rather

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -10- March 18, 2011



than "a property owner" or "the owner." There is the possibility

that sone bill [|anguage mght provide an opportunity for a
defendant to msuse the return of property hearing process and
detract from the intention of the bill; this is a victins'
rights bill. It would be good to use the definition of "crine

victim in order to stay consistent with the mssion of victim
advocacy. He noted that Anne Carpeneti, DOL, was supportive of
t he changes.

2:32:26 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked about an owner of property who wasn't
a crinme victim they were a pawn shop or retailer. He asked if
t hey woul d no | onger be covered under AS 12.55. 185.

MR KOPP said he sees it differently because they are a
collateral victim They may not have been an initial victim but
they are suffering a financial |oss and don't have a recourse.
He felt that Ofice of Victinse Rights (OVR) would at |east be
able to make a determ nation that they are a crine victim

SENATOR PASKVAN cited the statute and said it's awkward at best.

MR. KOPP said it would require an interpretation to say that an
of fense has been perpetrated agai nst the owner.

CHAIR FRENCH said the basic definition is easy to understand.
The question Senator Welechowski raised is theft of property
and the thief sells it and it's sold to the pawn shop and then
the police seize the property.

2:35:27 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said now if the stolen property is in a pawn
shop, the police take it. Wat the pawn shop owner called and
said it's really his property and the police are holding the
property. No charges have ever been brought, but he has no way
to get it back

MR. KOPP said he likes that the |language clarifies that this is
a victimrights bill and he believes that there are collatera
victims. Wth respect to pawn shops, you need to show that the
property was taken recklessly. It isn't seized automatically. He
recogni zes that the bill won't accommobdate every situation

2:37:59 PM
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI suggested it's a policy call

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -11- March 18, 2011



CHAIR FRENCH said it isn't a concern that's been brought to him
This bill is based on the exanple the sponsor cited about a boat
construction site and | oss of el ectronics.

MR. KOPP agreed in that case the property owner was a direct
crime victim

SENATOR PASKVAN said the CS on page 2, lines 19-20, defines
crime victim He asked if it would work to say it potentially
may i ncl ude ot hers.

2:40: 58 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said on page 2, lines 6-9, the bill says
"After a hearing a court may order the return of the property in
the custody of a |aw enforcenent agency to the crine victimif
the crinme victim by a preponderance of the evidence provides
sati sfactory proof of ownership."”

MR KOPP said he didn't foll ow

CHAIR FRENCH said in the case of a rental car, if the rental car
is stolen, the concern relates to who is the victim

MR. KOPP said both the renter and the owner, but the financial
| oss woul d go back to the owner

2:43:19 PM

SENATOR PASKVAN said the definition says "against whom the
of fense has been perpetrated.” The police seized property from
the pawn shop owner. The definition of victim requires the
identification of an offense.

MR. KOPP said the status of that property is unclear.

CHAIR FRENCH said he'd want to hear from the police before
standing up for the jewelry shop owner any nore.

2:46: 12 PM

MR. KOPP said they kept the definition that's already in |aw
Doing it any other way would require recognition of collatera
victins of crines.

CHAIR FRENCH said he had a lingering concern that the previous
CS enpowered defendants, and this version clears that up.

MR. KOPP said this allows OVR to determine if a person is a
victim

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -12- March 18, 2011



2:47: 59 PM
CHAI R FRENCH announced that he would hold SB 30 in comm ttee.

2:48: 11 PM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Chair French adjourned the neeting at 2:48 p.m

SENATE JUD COW TTEE -13- March 18, 2011



